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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Minda Koser Aluminum Wheel Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India. of the state of atfairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and other comprehensive
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the vear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Awditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is Sl;IfﬂCierll and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s Board report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information
and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. The
annual report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report.. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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Management's and Board of Directors” Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible [or the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income. changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safecguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

[n preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board ot Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. whether due to fraud
or error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may involve
collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. misrepresentations. or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* [valuate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ol accounting estimates
and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of Directors.

e C(Conclude on the appropriateness ol the Management and Board of Directors use ol the going concern
basis of accounting and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a
coing concern. I we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are
inadequate. to modity our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However. future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.
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e Lvaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements. including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditors™ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order. to the extent applicable.

2. (A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

¢)

d)

f)

(B)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In'our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors. none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2020
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors™ Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, m our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Ind
AS financial statements — Reler Note 31 to the Ind AS financial statements.

The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts tor which

there were any material foresecable losses:

.
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iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transterred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made
in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2020.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248 W/W-100022

#

Shweta Kumar
Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No: 509822
Date: 17 June 2020 UDIN: 20509822AAAAAM2090
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Annexure A referred to in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Minda Kosei
Aluminum Wheel Private Limited on the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020

(1) (a)

(b)

(c)

(11)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets (property, plant and equipment and intangible assets).

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a regular programme
of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed assets are verified in a phased manner
over a period of three years. In accordance with this program, certain fixed assets were verified
during the year. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed to us. no material discrepancies
were observed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deed of the immovable property is held in the name
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories, except goods-in-
transit, have been physically verified by the management during the vear. In our opinion, the
frequency of such verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its business. For goods-in-transit, substantially all materials were received/ delivered
until the date of issuance of the report. As informed to us, the discrepancies noticed on
verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not material and have been
properly adjusted in the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered
in the register required under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly. paragraph
3(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

Aceording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company. in respect of the loan granted, the provisions of section 185 of the
Act is not applicable to the Company. Further, as explained to us and based on our audit
procedures performed, we are of the opinion that provisions of section 186 of the Act have been
complied in respect of the loan given by the Company. There are no guarantecs given. investments
made or securities provided by the Company as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not accepted
any deposits as mentioned in the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed
there under. Accordingly. paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has
not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) to Section 148 of the
Companies  Act. 2013 in respect of any of the activities undertaken by the Company.
Accordingly. the provisions of paragraph 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.
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(vi1) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

(b)

(vii)

(1x)

(x)

(x1)

of the records of the Company. amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees™ State Insurance. Income-
tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty of Customs. Cess and any other material statutory dues.
to the extent applicable. have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities., though there have been slight delays in a few cases in deposit of Tax deducted at
source.

Dues relating to value added tax, sales tax, service tax and duty of excise are not applicable to
the Company, as these have been subsumed in the Goods and Services Tax w.e.f. 1 July 2017.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of Provident Fund. Employees” State Insurance. Income-tax, Goods and Services Tax,
Duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues, to the extent applicable, were in
arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty of Customs. Duty of Excise or Cess and Value
Added Tax which has not been deposited as on 31 March 2020 on account of any disputes except
for the following:

Period to
Nature of Amount (Rs. | which the Forum where
Name of the Statue Dues millions) amount relates | dispute is pending
Additional
Director General
, Directorate
General Of
Goods And
Oct-2015 to Services Tax
Central Excise Act 1944 | Excise Duty | 28.20 | July-2017 Intelligence.

*

According to the information and explanations given to us. the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borrowings to any banks. The Company did not have any dues to
debenture holders or outstanding loans or borrowings from any financial institutions or
government during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instrument) and term loan
during the year. Accordingly. paragraph 3(ix) of the order is not applicable.

The Company has identified a fraud wherein cash amounting to Rs. 4.7 million was
misappropriated by one of its employees in collusion with a vendor. This amount has been
recovered during the year from the employee and vendor.

Other than above. to the best of our knowledge and according to the information and
explanations given to us. no other material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the vear.

According to the information and explanations 2iven to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company. the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided by the
Company in accordance with provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies
Act. 2013,
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(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly. paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company. all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act. where applicable. and the details have been disclosed in the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company. the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of its shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly. paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

5

) S@Kumar

Partner

Place: Gurugram Membership No: 509822
Date: 17 June 2020 UDIN: 20509822AAAAAM2090
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of Minda Kosei
Aluminum Wheel Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Minda Kosei
Aluminum Wheel Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“the Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to [linancial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business. including adherence to company”s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act™).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were

established and maintained and whether such controls operated eftectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists. and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement. including the assessment of the risks ol material misstatement
of the Ninancial statements. whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of linancial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3) provide
recasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
imcluding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements Lo [uture periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Shweta Kumar
Partner
Place: Gurugram Membership No: 509822
Date: 17 June 2020 UDIN: 20509822AAAAAM2090
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020

(Al figures are 1n # Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CEN 12913900201 5PTCITR2SS

™ote No. As an As ar
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property plantand eguipment 4 38426 426509
Capital work-in-progress 4 1044 6 754 6
Intangible assets § 5 LR
Finantial assets
Loans [ 164 17
her financial assets T 352 X5
Deferred tax assets (nen) 8 T4 -
Mom=currant iy assets(net) 9 741 723
Orher nan-current assets {1} 479 255
Current assets
Inventores I 4388 Tod B
Financial assets
Trade recevables (4 4047 6991
Cash and cash equivalents 13 1432 704
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 340 6 46,9
Loans [ 129 1.5
Orther financial assets 7 30,2 271
Dither current ussets 10 48 2643
TOTAL ASSETS G671 4 TOZ74
ITY ANT 3
Equity
Equity share capital 154 1883 8 1 853 8
Orher equity 158 L17s 11267
Liabilities
Non- current liabilities
Frnarncial habnlities
Borrowings 164 8853 1809 %
Orher financial hiabilities 168 334 511
Provisions 17 3587 321.9
Deferred tax habilities {net) £ - 936
Government grants 18 3672 3672
Current liabilities
Fimancial habilites
Barrowings 164 - 152.5
Trade payables 19
Tonal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 228 272
Total owtstanding dues of creditors other than micra enterprises aja T G008
and small enterprises
Other financial habthnes 20 e 4233
Otker current liabilities 2l 409 677
Provisions 17 T8 06
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2.671.4 70274
Significant accounting policies 3

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these linancial statements
As per our report of even date ammached
For BSR & Co. LLP L and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Acconntamis of Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Fyrm Regisration Mo, 101 248W/ W-100022

1
2 B2
TG

ela Kumar win ar Jh Yoshihiro Toda
Parmer Managing Direcior Dhrector
Memberslip No - 309822 DIN Na: 07137708 DIN No 08121667
Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date 17 June 2620 Date. 17 June 2020 Date 17 June 2020

MWOWO L

Ankur Agrawal
Chief Fmancral Officer

v

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 June 2020




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the vear ended 31 March 2020

( All figures are in 2 Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN: 1129130DL2015PTC278233

Note No. Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 219

Revenue from operations 22 53391 59974
Other meome 23 343 122
Total income 5.373.6 6.009.6
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 24 23315 2.963.0
Changes in mventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 25 547 8.0
Emplovee benefits expense 26. 3869 4071
Fiance costs 27 1897 1800
Deprecianon and amortisalion expense 28 589.3 558.6
Other expenses 29 985.3 1,083.7
Total expenses 4,537.4 35,2004
Profit before tax 836.2 8092
Tax expense:

Current tax 2759 1780

Tax related to carlier years 5.7 -

Deferred tax (100 8} 67.9
Profit for the year 655.4 563.3
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Re-measurement {losses) / gawns on defined benefit plans (5:6) (1.1
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 1.4 (4
Net other comprehensive income (4.2) (.7
Taotal comprehensive income for the year 651.2 562.6
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in ) 15D 3.5 3.0
{Face value of ¥ 10 per share)
Weighted average equity shares used in computing earnings per equity share 13D 188 380,000 188,380,000
Significant accounting policies 3
The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors

of Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Fur BSR & Co. LLP
Chariered Accountams
Firm Registration No.:101248W W-100022

5 | Pl

Kuwdan'K Yoshihiro Toda
‘ﬁ'rl * Managing Director Director
kg

eta Kumar DIN No: 07137705 DIN No 08121667
Partner
Memberslup No. 509822 Place: Gurugram Place Gurugram
Date: 17 June 2020 Date: 17 June 2020

Place. Gurugram
Date 17 June 2020

(ﬁwa,w@lwwab

Ankur Agrawal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date. 17 June 2020




Minda Kos¢i Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flow for the vear ended 31 March 2020

{ Al figures are ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CEN. LU29130DL201 SPTC278233

Particulars

A, Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation
Unrealised foreign exchange (gam) ' loss (net of mark to market gain
on derivative)
Finance costs
Interest ineome
Operating profit before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:

Decrease © (ncrease) in Inventory

Decrease | (increase) in trade recervables
Increase in loans & other financial assets
Decrease in other assets

{Decrease) | increase in trade payables

Increase m other financial labilines

Increase m provisions for employement benefir:
(Decrease) | increase in other current habihites

Cash generated from operations
Tncome fax pard
Net cash fTow from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of property. plant and equipment and intangible assets
Proceeds trom sale of property, plant and equipment
Frxved deposits with banks
Tnterest receved
Net cush used in investing activities (B)

€. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds trom borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
(Repavments)  proceeds of borrowings (net)
Intcrest paid
Net cash from/{used) in financing activities (C )

Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivsle{lls at the end of the year

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

836.2
3893
571
189.7

(254 810.7

1,646.9
126.0
2944
(113)
2473
189.0
34
83

(26.8) 830.5

24774

(283.3)

2,194.1

[503.8)

(3354)

254

(813.%)

(1.000.2)

(152.5)

(154.8)

{1,307.5)

7.8

T0.4

143.2

809.2
5586
(3.6)
1800

(10.4) T24.5

1,533.7
(257 4)
(26.3)
tn
513
[ 160.6)
6.0
38.5

(28 8) (I88.6)

1.145.1

(17093

974.2

(1317.1)

02

477

10.0

(1.259.2)

1.329.9

“(143.5)

(B51.4)

(183 1)

151.9

(133.2)

203.5

70.4

The Cash tlow statement has been prepared under the indirect method a5 set out in Tndian Accounting Standard-7 on Statement of Cash flows as notified under section 133 of the Companies

Act 2013 Also refer note 16A in respect of disclosure related w Ind AS 7
s per our report of even date attached
ForBS R & Co. LLP

(hartered Acconnianis
Firm Registranon No.: 101 248WW- 100022

Shweta Kumar
Partner
Membership No - 509822

Place: Gurugram
Date’ 17 June 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

of Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

ki .H(

Managing Director
DIN No: 07137705

Place: Gurngram
Date- 17 June 2020

C&wm@wowab

Ankur Agrawal
Cheel Financial Officer

Place: Guragram
Date: 17 June 2020

TN

Yoshihiro Toda
Dhrecror
DIN No: 08121667

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 June 2020




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Al figures are in T Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

A. Equity share capital

Balance as at 1 April 2018 1,8838
Changes in equity share capital during 2018-19 =
Balance as at 31 March 2019 1.883 8
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20

Balance as at 31 March 2020 1.883.8

B. Other equity

Attributable to equity shareholders

Reserves and surplus
Retained earnings Items of OCI Total
Remeasurement of
defined benefit
liability / asset

As at 1 April 2018 5557 - 355.7
Profit for the year 3633 - 563.3
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - (0.7) 10.7)
Total comprehensive income 3633 (0.7) 562.6
Additional tax benefit on emplovee stock

: 2 5 . 84 B 84
options exercised durmg the year (refer note 38)
Transferred to retained earnings (0.7 0.7 -
As at 31 March 2019 1.126.7 - 1.126.7
Protit for the year 655.4 6354
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (4.2) 42)
Total comprehensive income 6554 (4.2) 651.2
Transferred to retained earnings (4.2) 42 -
As at 31 March 2020 1,777.9 - 1.777.9

The notes referred to above form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants of Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 101248 W/W-100022

Shweta Kumar 4] n rJ Yoshihiro Toda

Partner Managing Director Director
Membership No. - 509822 DIN No: 07137705 DIN No: 08121667
Place Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 June 2020 Date: 17 June 2020 Date: |7 June 2020
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Ankur Agrawal
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurugram
Date: 17 June 2020




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

1. Corporate information
Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited ("the Company") is a private limited company
incorporated on 23 March 2015 under the Companies Act, 2013. It is a venture between Minda

Industries Limited and Kosei International Trade and Investment Co. Limited. The Company is
primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of Aluminium alloy wheels

2. Basis of preparation

A. Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the *Act”) and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

The Financial Statements are approved by the Company’s Board of Directors on 17 June 2020,

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

B. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest millions and one decimal
thereof, unless otherwise indicated.

C. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

. Items Measurement Basis
Present value of defined benefit
obligations

(a) Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

(b) Certain financial assets and liabilities
(including derivative instruments)
(c) Other financial assets and liabilities Amortised cost

Fair value

D. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities. income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized prospectively.

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, and of items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about
each of these estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information
about the basis of calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements.
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Judgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

- Estimation of income tax (current and deferred) — Note 8

- Estimated useful life of other intangible asset — Note S and Note 3 (E)

- Estimated useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipment — Note 4 and
Note 3 (d) (iii)

- Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies — Note 31

- Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 32

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the company and that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

E. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current / non-current
classification. The Company has presented non-current assets and current assets before equity,
non-current liabilities and current liabilities in accordance with Schedule III, Division II of
Companies Act, 2013 notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

An asset is classified as current when it is:

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

¢) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for
the purpose of classification of its assets and liability as current and non-current.

3. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to the period presented in these
financial statements.

&
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A.

Foreign currency transactions
Initial recognition and settlement

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate
at the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Measurement at the reporting date

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

The date of transaction which is required to determine the spot exchange rate for translation
would be the earlier of:

e The date of initial recognition of the non —monetary prepayment asset or deferred income
liability, and
* The date that the related item is recognised in the financial statements.

Exchange differences are recognized in profit and loss.
Measurement of fair values

A number of the accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used
in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. This includes a finance team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant
fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values. and reports directly to the chief financial
officer.

The finance team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If
third party information, is used to measure fair values, then the finance team assesses the evidence
obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the
requirements of Ind AS. including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations
should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability. the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. [f the inputs used to measure the fair value of a or a liability fall
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into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in
its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant
to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierérchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values used in preparing these
financial statements is included in the respective notes.

C. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is defined as any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and
a financial liability or equity instruments of another entity.

i. Recognition and initial measurement

O

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

a) Amortised cost; or
+ b) FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and
assets at losses, including any interest or dividend income. are recognised in
FVTPL profit or loss. m

: O '{0
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iii.

Financial These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
assets at effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
amortised cost | losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value
and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

[f the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms
is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the

amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk
exposures.

\¥




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

Derivatives are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives
are measured at fair value and changes therein are generally recognised in statement of profit
and loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

[tems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any
directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to working
condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restoring the site on which it is located.

Property, plant and equipment under construction are disclosed as capital work-in-progress. Cost
of construction that relate directly to specific property, plant and equipment and that are
attributable to construction activity in general are included in capital work-in-progress.

[f significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property. plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in
statement of profit and loss.

ii.Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

iii. Depreciation

Depreciation on items of property, plant and equipment is provided as per straight-line method
basis, as per useful life of the assets estimated by the management, which is equal to the useful
life prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 except in the case of certain plant
and equipment, the life is based on technical evaluation and assessment.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation on additions/ (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / (upto) the date
on which asset is ready for use/ (disposed of).

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted if appropriate. Based on internal assessment and consequent advice, the management
believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best represent the period over which
management expects to use these assets.

Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are
carried at cost are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Gv
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The estimated useful lives of items of property. plant and equipment are as follows:

Particulars Useful life as per | Management
Companies:Act estimate of useful life
2013 (Years) (Years)

Buildings 30 30

Plant and equipment 15 2/3/5/6/10/15

Furniture and fixtures 10 10

Vehicles 8 8

Office equipment 5 5

Computers 3 3

E. Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company are measured initially at cost. After initial
recognition, other intangible asset is carried at its cost less any accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method and is included in amortisation expense in statement of
profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:

L

- Computer software  3/6 years

Amortisation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial
year and adjusted if appropriate.

F. Impairment
i. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit loss on financial assets measured
at amortised cost.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost
is credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired” when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Evidence that the financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

+ the breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 90 days or more;

+ itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation; or
» The disappearance of active market for a security because of financial difficultie

W
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The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses,
except for the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

» Bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life
of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

- Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The Company follows ‘simplitied
approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables. The application
of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the
expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating expected credit losses. the Company considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects
to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company
determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However. financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

ii. Impairment of non-financial assets

&
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The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine if there is indication of any impairment. If any indication
exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

Assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped together into cash generating
units (CGU).

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign
currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs)
incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to
complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs).

For general borrowing used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is determined by applying a capitalization rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Company that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset. The amount of
borrowing costs capitalized during a period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost
incurred during that period.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind
AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant
judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable
discount rate

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with
both periods covered by an option extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is
reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably
certain to exercise an option to extend a lease. or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease. it
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considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The
Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease
being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Inventories

Inventories which comprise raw materials and components, work-in-progress, finished goods and
stores and spares are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase (net of recoverable taxes, where applicable),
costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

The basis of determining costs for various categories of inventories are as follows: -
Raw materials and components, stores and spares B Weighted average cost

Work-in-progress and finished goods - Material cost plus
appropriate share of labour,
manufacturing overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The net realisable value of work-in-progress is determined with reference to the selling prices of
related finished products. Raw materials and other supplies held for use in the production of
finished products are not written down below cost except in cases where material prices have
declined, and it is estimated that the cost of the finished products will exceed their net realisable
value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item-by-item basis.

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally
concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically controls the
goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

a) Revenue from sale of wheels

Revenue from sale of wheels is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the wheels. The Company considers whether
there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the
sale of equipment, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence of
significant financing components, non-cash consideration. and consideration payable to the
customer (if any).

b) Variable Consideration

g
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If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount
of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. Contracts for the sale of wheels provide customers with a customary right of return in
case of defects, quality issues etc. The rights of return give rise to variable consideration. The
Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not be returned because
this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Company will be
entitled. The requirements in Ind AS115 on constraining estimates of variable consideration are
also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can be included in
the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead of revenue, the Company
recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost of
sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from a customer.

¢) Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services performed in the
ordinary course of business. They are generally due for settlement within one year and therefore
are all classified as current. Where the settlement is due after one year, they are classified as non-
current. Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant financing components, when they are recognised at
fair value. The Company holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Trade receivables are disclosed in Note 38.

d) Contract Assets

A contract asset is the entity’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
entity has transferred to the customer. A contract asset becomes a receivable when the entity’s
right to consideration is unconditional, which is the case when only the passage of time is required
before payment of the consideration is due. The impairment of contract assets is measured,
presented and disclosed on the same basis as trade receivables.

e) Contract Liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is
earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract. Contract Liabilities are disclosed in Note 38 as Advances received from customers.

f) Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method.

g) Rental income arising from properties given under operating leases is accounted for on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms unless the receipts are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases and is included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

K. Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits
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Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to
be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by Ihe employee, and the
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Share-based payment transactions

The Company accounts for equity settled stock options for the parent company using the fair
value method.

(iii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts.
The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Employee Provident Fund (EPF)
and Employees’ State Insurance to Government administered fund which is a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s contribution is recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(iv) Defined benefit plan
Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting
that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benetit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method.

*Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses

are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period
to the then- net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit
payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (“past service cost’ or “past service gain”) or the gain or loss
on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

(v) Other long term employee benefits

Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment.
Since, the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be
utilized wholly within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as a
long-term employee benefit. The Com pany records an obligation for such compensated absences
in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. The
obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit
credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they arise.

L.  Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the C ompany will comply with all attached
conditions. Government grants relating to income are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate and
presented within other income. Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other
operating revenue.

M. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of
the facility will be drawn down. In this case. the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To
the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial
liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed. is recognised in profit or loss as
other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is
a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the
reporting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting
date, the entity does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting
period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a
consequence of the breach.

#
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N. Provisions and contingent liabilities
(i) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date.

(i) Contingencies

Provision in respect of loss contingencies relating to claims, litigation, assessment. fines,
penalties, etc. are recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred, and the amount
can be estimated reliably.

0. Income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Tax benefits of deductions earned on exercise of employee stock options in excess of
compensation charged to income are credited to other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates
(and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

. Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on
a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
the assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence
that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore. in case of history of recent losses, the
company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available
against which such deferred tax asset can be realized.

Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are
recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable / no longer probable respectively that the
related tax benefits will be realized.

A
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authorities.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted average number of equity and dilutive
equity equivalent shares outstanding during the year end. except where the results would be anti-
dilutive.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present
obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation
whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but
are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are
neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are
assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise,
the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any
of the other components, and for which discrete financial information is available.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and supply of aluminium alloy wheels.
Accordingly, the Company’s activities/ business is reviewed regularly by the Company’s Board
of directors from an overall business perspective, rather than reviewing its products/services as
individual standalone components.

Based on the dominant source and nature of risks and returns of the Company, management has
identified its business segment as its primary reporting format.

&
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

S. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above.

T. Recent accounting pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April 1, 2020.
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

({All figures are in T Million. except share data and unless otherwise stated)

CIN, U29130DL.2015PTC278233

4. Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress (Contd.)

b. Security

Praperties with a carryimg amount which are subject to first pan passu charge to secure bank loans [refer to note no. 16]

c. Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress includes borrowing costs of Z 1.7 nullion (31 March 2019: T 1.7 mullion).

5. Intangible assets

Reconciliation of carrying amount

A. Gross carrying value Computer software
As at 1 April 2018 18.0
Add: Additons during the year 3.2
|.ess Disposals / adjustments during the vear -
As at 31 March 2019 Z1.2
Add: Additions during the year 3
Less Disposals | adjustments during the year -
As at 31 March 2020 21.5

Accumulated amortisation

As at 1 April 2018 5.6
Add Amortisation charge for the year 45
Less On disposals / adjustments dunng the year -

As at 31 March 2019 10.1
Add: Amorusation charge for the year 38
Less On disposals / adjustments during the vear -

As at 31 March 2020 13.9

Net carrying value

As at 31 March 2020 76
As at 31 March 2019 1.1

&
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the yvear ended 31 March 2020

i All figures are in ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise staled)
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

6. Loans
(unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Non-current
Security deposits

Current

Loan Receivable

- from related party
- from employees

-1

. Other financial assets
(unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Non-current
Rank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting date)*

Current

Interest accrued on deposits
Forward contract recewvable
Other receivables

- From related paruies

- From other than related parties

* Represents fixed deposits pledged against Bank Guarantee & Letter of Credit .

As at
31 March 2020

Asat
31 March 2019

16.4 17.4
16.4 17.4
12.0
.9 1.5
12.9 1.5
29.3 18.9
3532 25
3 2.5
1.6 1.6
266 245
19 0.8
0.1 0.2
30.2 27.1
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(| All figures are in T Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

9. Non current tax assets (net)

Asat
31 March 2020

Asat
31 March 2019

Balance as at beginning of the vear

Change in allowance for expected credit loss and credit impairment
Trade recervables written ofT during the vear

Balance as at the end of the year

Balance as at end of the year

Non-current tax assets (net) T4.1 T3
As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 h 2019
10, Other assets
(Uinsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Non-current
Capital advances:
- To related parties - 76
- To other than related parties 479 17.9
47.9 25.5
Current
Balance with government authorities 6.8 2443
Advances to suppliers
- To other than related parties 5.3 17.1
Prepaid expenses 43 29
16.6 264.3
64.5 289.8
—
As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
11, Inventories
ivelued at lower of cost or net realisable value)
Raw materials and components 406.1 456.7
[Includes raw material in transit Z 116,71 million (31 March 2019: F 325.7 million]
W ork- m-progress 297 388
Fimushed goods 128.7 1743
Stores and spares 743 95.0
638.8 764.8
Carrying amount of inventories (included above) hypothecated as secunties for borrowings
[refer to note no. 164] 638.8 e
- As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
12. Trade receivables (Refer note 38)
Trade Recervables considered good - Secured - -
Trade Recervables considered good - Unsecured 4047 6599, |
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss = =
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit nsk = =
Trade Recervables - credit impaired - i
Less: Allowance for credit impairment - -
404.7 699.1

I'he movement in change in allowance for expected credit loss and credit impairment :

NE




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{All figures are in ¥ Million. except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN, U292130DL2015PTC278233

13. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

= current account

- demand deposits

{with orginal matunty of less than 3 months)
Cash on hand

14. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Bank deposits (duc to mature within 12 months of the reporting date)*

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

15.2

127 8 637

0.2 0.1

143.2 70.4
==

Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
3496 46.9
349.6 46.9
=

* Tncludes fixed deposis pledued against bank Guarantee amounting to # 4.4 million on 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 F 9.1 milhon)

—
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All figures are in T Million. except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

15 A. Share capital
a) Details of share capital

Authorised share capital

[89.000.000 (31 March 2019: 189.000.000) equity shares of Z 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up
188.380.000 (31 March 2019: 188.380,000) equity shares of ¥ 10 each
fully paid up

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

b) Reconciliation of outstanding equity shares at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

As at 31 March 2018
Add: Shares issued during the year
As at 31 March 2019
Add: Shares issued during the year
As at 31 March 2020

¢) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder

Mindatlndu:ﬂrics Limited. India {Holding Company)
Minda Industries Limited. India (% held)
Kosei International Trade and Investment Company Limited. Hong Kong

Kosei International Trade and Investment Company Limited. Hong Kong

d) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

1.890.0 1.890.0

1.883.8 1.883.8

1,883.8 1,883.8

Number of Amount

shares (° in millions)
188,380.000 1.883.8
188,380,000 1.883.8
188.380,000 1.883.8
As at As at

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

131.861.100

69.997%

56.5314.000

30.000%

131.861.100

69.997%

56.514.000

30.000%

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ™ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is
entitled to one vote per share. The Company may declare and pay dividends in Indian rupees. The final dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors. if any. is subject to the approval of the sharcholders in the ensuing Annual General

Meeting.

During the year no interim/ final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company.

In the event of liquidation of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, afier distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

¢) There are no bonus issue or buv back ol equity shares since the incorporation of the Company.




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All figures are in 2 Million. except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

15 B. Other equity As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Retained earning

Balance at the beginning of the vear 1.126.7 355.7

Profit for the vear 635.4 5633

Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (4.2) (0.7)
Additional tax benefit on employee stock options exercised during the - 8.4

vear (refer note 38)

Total 1, 771.9 1,126.7

15 C. Capital management
'he Company s objectives when managing capital are to
+ sateguard their ability to continue as a going concern. so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and|
benetits for other stakeholders; and
* maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and tol
sustain the future development of the business.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to sharcholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt, consistent with others in the industry. The
Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as:

Net debt (total borrowings net ot cash and cash equivalents) divided by ~Total equity” (as shown in the Balance Sheet).

As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 1.091.2 2.210.8
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (143.2) (70.4)
Total debts 948.0 2,140.4
Equity share capital 1.883.8 1.883.8
Other equity 1.777.9 1,126.7
Total equity 3,661.7 3,010.5
Debt to equity ratio 0.3 0.7

15 D. Earning per share

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Profit for the year attributable to the equity shareholders (2 in millions) 635.4 3563.3
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 188.380.000 188.380.000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (face value Z 10 per share) (in ¥) 3.5 3.0

Y,
7/




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al figures are in ¥ Millon, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN: L29130DL2015PTC278233

. l'erms repayment schedule and security

Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
16A. Borrowings
Non-current borrowings
Secured
Rupee loan from banks 6842 1.6433
Foreign currency loan from bank 407.0 430
[ess Amount included under ‘other Gnancial liabilities' (205.9) {248 5)
B85.3 1.809.8
Current borrowings
Secured
Buyer's credit from banks - 1525
- 152.5
885.3 1,962.3

Nature of security

Terms of repayment and rate of interest

Yes Bank
Rupee loan from bank amounting to ¥ Nil (31 March 2019: ¥ 2959
mulkion) is secured by:
- First pari passu charge on all movable property, plant and equipment
(PPE) (both present and future) and immovable PPE of Bawal plant
- Second pari passu charge on all current assels

Rate of mterest - 11% for first vear and thereafter floating @ Yes Bank base rate plus
0.50% per annum Currently 9.55% at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 9.80%, )

Maximum tenor of loan 1s for 96 months from the date of first disbursement.

Principal amount 15 repayable in 24 quarterly instalments afier a moratorium penod of
24 months from the date of first disbursement, First disbursement of the loan was 1n year
2015-16

Yes Bank
Rupee loan from bank amounting to ¥ Nl (31 March 2019 ¥ 121 7 nmulhon
Nil) is secured by:
- First pari passu charue on all movable property, plant and equipment
1PPE) (both present and future ) and immovable PPE of Bawal plant
- Second pari passu charge on all current assets

Ratc of interest - floating @ Yes Bank base rate 6 month MCLR plus 0.25% per annum,
Currently 9.45% at 31 March 2020, (31 March 201%: 9.95% )

Maximum tenor of loan is for 72 months including moratorium period of 12 months
from date of first disbursement.

Principal amount is repayable in 20 quarterly instalments after a moratonum penod of
12 months froms the date of first disbursement. First disbursement of the loan was in vear
2018-19

Indusind Bank
Rupee loan from bank amounting to T 96,8 million (31 March 2019 ¥
96.8 mulhion) is sccured by
- First pari passu charge by way of equitable mortgage on inmovable
property {land and building ) located at Bawal. Haryana and by way of
hypothecation on all present and future moveable property. plant and
equipment (PPE).
- Seeond pan passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the present and
future current assets.

Rate of interest - Hoatng @ IndusInd Bank base rate 6 month MCLR. Currently 8.95%
at 31 March 2020. (31 March 2019: 9.75%)

Maximum tenor of loan is tor 96 months from the date of first disbursement.

Principal amount is repayable in 24 quarterly instalments aficr a moratorium period of
24 months from the date of first disbursement. First disbursement of the loan was in year
2018-19

Indusind Bank
Rupee loan from bank amounting to ¥ 162 3 million (31 March 2019:
#4013 million) is secured by
- First pant passu charge by way of equitable movtgage on immovable
property (Tand and building) located at Bawal, Haryana and by way of
hypothecation on all present and future moveable property, plant and
equipment (PPE).
- Second pan passu charge by way of hypothecation on all the present and
furure current assets

Rate of mterest - floating @ IndusTnd Bank base rate 6 month MCLR. Currently 8.95%
at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: 10.00% )

Maximum tenor of loan s for 96 months from the date of first disbursement.

Principal amount is repayable in 24 quarterly instalments afier a moratorium period of
24 months from the date of first disbursement. First disbursement of the loan was in year
2015-16

&
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SCB Bank
Fareiun currency loan from bank amounting to % 407 million (31 March 2019
# 415.0r million ) is secured by
- First pan passu charge on all movable PPE (both present and furure) of
Guyarat plant.
- Second pari passu charge on current assets

Cost of funds + Bank's margin of 1 50%. Carrently 8.35% at 31 March 2020, (31
March 2019: 8.55%)

Maxunum tenor of loan shall not exceed 7 vears from the date of first disbwrsement

Principal amount 1s repayable-m 20 equal quarterly installments after a moratonum

perod of 24 months from the date of first disbursement, with first repayvinent date to
oot go beyond 31 December 2019,

HDFC Bank
Rupee laan from bank amounting to 4250 nullion (31 March 2019 2
550.0 million) is secured by:
- First pan passu charge on equitable mortgage over immovable PPE (land and

Rate of mterest - floanng @ HDFC Bank base rate 6 month MCLR. Currenly
8.45 % as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 : 9.10%) )

ek : Maxamum tenor of loan 1s for 84 months from the date of first disbursement.
building of Gujarat Plant) and movable PPE (plant and equipment of Gujarat

B Prncipal amount 1s repayable in 20 quarterly instalments after a moratorium perrod
of 24 months from the date of first disbursement. First disbursement of the loan was

i vear 2017-18

plant and Bawal Phase 1 plant)
- Second pan passu charge on stock and book debts

HDFC Bank
Rupee loan from bank amountng to  Nil {31 March 2019:  177.6 mallion )1s Rate of interest - floatng (@ HDFC Bank base rate 6 month MCLR. - Currently
secured by: 8.45 % as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 9.05%)
- Exclusive charge over immovable PPE (land and building) both p and
future of Bawal phase 2 Maximum tenor of loan is for 84 months from the date of first disbursement.

- First part passu charge on equitable mortgage over movable PPE (plant and Prncipal amount is repayable in 20 quarterly instalments after a moratorium period

cquipment of Gujarat plant, Bawal phase | plant and MFA to be created in 1,724 months from the date of first disbursement. First disbursemient of the Ioan was
Bawal phase 2) in year 2018-19

- Second pari passu charge on stock and book debts

Buyers credit facility Rate of inferest for is based on [ TROR + specified rate. which changes from fime ta

nme and 1s mutually decided as the time of taking renewal of Buyers' credit
The company has availed Supphier's credit from bank amounting ro ¥ Nil (31
NMarch 201%: Z 152.5 million) from whom it has availed rupee loan, the terms

and conditions of which are same as specified for term loan and are considered |Maximum tenor of loan shall not exceed the dates of term loan and each buyer's
as co-terminus with term loan. credil 1s due for payment (either by roll forward or by payment) in less than | year.

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash Mlows arising from financing activities

Asat As at
" 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Non-current Current Non-current Current
borrowings* borrewings borrowings® borrowings
Balance as at the beginning of the vear 103583 1525 8475 1.003.8
Changes from financing cash flows
Proceeds from non-current borrowings - = 13298 =
Repayment of non-current borrowings - (143.5) -
Proceeds from/| repayments ) of current borrowings (net} (1.000.2) (152.5) = (B51.3)
Impact of forsipn exchange 332 - 245 -
Balance as at the end of the year 1,091.2 (0.0) 2,058.3 152.5
* Includes current portion ot non current borrowings.
As at As at
168, (Other financial liabilities 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Payables for property, plant and equipment
- to others 334 51.1
334 51.1

A
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17. Provisions

Asat
31 March 2020

Asat
31 March 2019

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
- Provision for gratuity {refer to note no. 32) 301 182
- Provision for compensated absences 101 142
Other provisions
- Provision for interest under export promotion capital grant scheme (refer to note no. 30) 3185 289:5
358.7 321.9
Current
Provision for employvee benefits
- Provision for gramity (refer to note no. 32) 08 0.2
- Provision for compensated absences 1.0 0.4
1.8 0.6
366.5 321.5
As at As at
Maovement in other provisions 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Opening balance 289.5 2631
Provisions made during the vear 293 264
Provisions uthsed dunng the vear - -
Closing balance 3188 2895
18. Government grants Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Export promotion capital grant
Non current portion 367.2 367.2
367.2 367.2
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
19. Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 228 252
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 919.7 699 8
942.5 727.0
(1) All rade pavables are 'current’
(11) Disclosure as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006"based on the mformation available with the Company 15 as follows
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
The amounts remaining unpard to suppliers as at the end of the year 229 272
- Principal
- Interest
The amount of payments made under the Act beyond the appomnted day dunng the year 10.3 66.5
The amount of interest paid under the act beyvond the appointed day during the vear - 1.5
The amount of nterest due and payable for the period of delay in making pavtent (which have been 01 5
paid but beyond the appomied day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
the Act
The amount of nterest acerued and remaimng unpaid at the end of gach accounting year 0.1 =

The amount of further mterest remaming due and pavable even i the succeeding years. until such
date when the interest dues as above are acmally paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under the Act
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20 . Other financial habilities

Curtent matunties of long term borrowmngs (refer to note no. 16)
Employee related payables

Interest accrued on borrowings

Payables for property, plant and equipment

- to related parties

- to others

21. Other current liabilities

Advance from Customers (Refer Note 38)
Statutory dues payable

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

2059 2485
182 14.8
31 0.2
9l.e 1153
55.1 46.7
373.9 425.5

Asat
31 March 2020

Asat
31 March 2019

08 <
40.1 67.7
40.9 67.7

%
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22 . Revenue from operations
Sale of products

Finished goods
Sale of goods

Other operating revenue:

Scrap sales

(i) Timing of revenue recognition

Goods ransferred at pomt of tme
Goods wransferred at over the nme

(i) Disaggregation of revenue based on product

Alloy wheels
Scrap

(iii) Revenue by location of customers

India
Outside India

(iv} Reconciliation of r recogni in

Revenue as per contracted price

Less: Cash discount
*

13 . Other income

Interest income on hank deposit and others
Rental Income

Mark-to-market gain from denvative mstruments
Mizcellanzous income

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

5.296.9 59394
5,196.9 5,939.4
42.2 58.0
42.2 58.0
5.339.1 5.997.4
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
5.339:1 59974
5,339.10 5.997.40
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
5,296.90 5,939.40
42.20 38.00
5,339.10 .2‘997.46
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
3.339.10 5.997 40
E.E‘J,]l) 5!99?.40
of profit and loss with contracted price :
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
5,339.10 5,997 40
5.339.10 5,997.40
254 104
36 -
2:1 -
14 1.8
34.5 12.2

¥
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24.

26.

28.

31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock of raw materials and components 4567 1977

Add Purchases of raw matenals and compoenents 2.280.9 32220
2,737.6 34197

Less Closme stock of raw matenals and components 406 | 456.7
2,331.5 2,963.0

{A) Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress Year ended Year ended

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Opening stock

- Work-in-progress %8 176
- Finished goods 174 3 2035
2151 2210
Closing stock
- Work- in -progress 07 338
- Finished goods 1287 1743
1584 2131
Changes in inventories of
- Work- in-progress a1 {212y
- Fimshed goods 43 6 292
54.7 8.
Employee benefits expense Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries. wages and bonus 3384 3579
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer tonote no. 31) 21 4 20.1
Employee stock option expenses (refer to note no. 38) 0.9 -
Stafi welfare expenses 2 291
386.9 407.1
Finance costs Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest on borrowings 1571 1516
Interest under export promotion capital goods scheme 203 264
Tnterest on income ax 30 04
(Oher charges 03 1.6
189.7 180.0
*
Year ended Year ended
Depreciation and amortisati P 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment 3855 354 1
Amortisation on miangible assets 38 4.3
589.3 5586

¥
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29 . Other expenses Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Stores and packing materials consumed 1642 2179
Power and fuel 365 8 3980
Repairs and mamtenance
-Plant and eguipment 22.3 195
-Building 1 20
- Others 204 223
Freight expense 18.2 292
Testing expense 32 90
Insurance 74 73
Travellng and conveyance 255 341
Legal and professional 221 188
Rent 05 75
Rates and taxes 48 33
Auditor's remuneration

- Statutory audit 20 18

- Other services 04 04

- Remmbursement of expenses 0.1 02
Foreign exchange fluctuation 763 783
Information technology expenses - 242
Support Services 187 -
Customer Support fees T15 -
Management fees 548 870
Royalty expense 56.7 296
Miscellaneous expenses # 353 333

2853 Lo8T

# Detail of corporate social responsibility expenditure
a Amount required to be spent by the Company during the vear 105 49

b Amount spent in cash during the vear on
(1) Construction / acquisition of assets -

(11) Om purpose other than (i) above 107 49

30. The Company had smported duty free capital goods under Export Promotion Capital Goods Scheme | EPCG) scheme. Lability of customs duty
towards export oblizgation undertaken by the Company amounts to T 367 2 million on 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 ¥ 3687 2 milkion ). Under the
said scheme, the Company has the obligation Lo export the goods equivalent to 6 umes of the amount of custom duty saved 1.e, ¥ 2203 2 million on
31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 T 2203 2 mullion) within a penod of 6 years (Block vear 15t to 4th— 30% and 3th 1o ath — 50%)

Export Obliganon of Rs 448 1 million (50% of Rs Rs 896 2 milhion) with respect to Block 1-4 years was expired during the year for which
extension has been obtaned

Liabbty i respect of” duty saved shown under non-current government grants of T 367 2 mallion (31 March 2019 ¥ 357.2 mullion )

In absence of confirmed export orders. as a matter of prudence, the Company 1s not recogmzing mncome relating to aforesaid dty and also providing
mterest thereon

31 . Contingent liabilities, Assets and commitments
(1 the extent not provided for)

ia)l  Claims agamst company not acknowledged as debt

I | 31 March 2020 | 31 March 2019 |
|Excise Matter * 282 | =1l

*Represents show cause demand on applicability of excise duty on designs provided by the customer

1) The Company does not expect any remmbursements in respect of the above contmgent habality
1) The Company has assessed that it is only possible but not probable that outflow of economic resources wall be required

(b} The Company has made sales to vanous customers agamst C-form ssued under Central Sales Tax Act, 1956 on account of wiich the Company has
pard 2% sales tax m place of 14 3% Total outstanding forms amounts to % 1.29 nullion (31 March 2019 2 1.29 nulhon )

el As per Industnal Poliey 20135 of Government of Guarat, the Company s ehanble for claiming meentive for its newly established plant i Gujarat
The Company has obtaned remstration certificate & Provisional eligibility certificate from the authority
As per the scheme. subject to fulfillment of certan conditions. Company 1s eluzible for 90% of the net State Goods and Services Tax (SGST) pad to
State Govemment as subsidy, subject to maximum of one tenth of the ehgible fixed nvestment in & particular vear The company 1s in the process of
assessing the complance of vanous conditons as enunciated under the scheme Accordingly, Company as matter of prudence has not recognised
ncenbve meome amounting 1o Rs. 74.5 mllion durny the vear ended 31 March 2020

(d}  Capital commitments (net of advance)

Estimated amount of contracts remaining 1o be executed on capital account for 2 295 14 milbion net of advances on 31 March 2020 (31 March
2019 T 268 5 million)

-394
=t
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32, Employee Benefits As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
a) Fahilitics relating to emphuyee benefit:

Now-current

Gramnity IEIRTY gD

Pronision for conspensated absence: {n.1y (A%
1#0.2) {324}

Carrent

Gratuity (1. 1) 02

Provision for compensped absence: (7.0} 4y

Tostal cmployes beneli Habilicie: {7.T} {iL.3)

Tental 47.9) {32.9)

The benefit valwed in this: report are summanised helow

Defaned benefit
100"
L0

Last drawn salary
Expar employess 3 years from Date of Joining
(Dbt cmployees - 58 Yewrs

Vesting Period 3 Years

Bencfin on nomml renrement Samie as per the provistons of the payment of gratuity
act, 1972 {as amcnded from fme o tinich

Benefivon carly relirement ( ierminaton | Samc as nomd retircment benefit based on the senace
upios (e date of cxsl,

Benefit on death in servics [ Saume as normal retiremsent benefit and wo vesting

applies
Lt % 2 amihion
Gratuity Formula 15/26 * lasi deawn salary * mumber of completed years

In case of emplovess with age sbove the retirement age indicated above. the retiremen is assamed 1o happen immediateb and valuation & done according

by Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

Tlve Compamy has a delined benefil graity plan, governed by the Payment of Grami 1972 The scheme provides for 2 lump sam payment (o vesied employces o1 retrement.
death whilz in cployment or on lemination of coplovmient. Vesting ocours npon completion of (ve vewrs of serice

Valuations are perfommed on cermn basic st of pre-geermmned and other regulatony fi & whach may vary aver nme The abowve defined benefit plan cvposes the
Company 1o following nisks:

Imitevest rate risk:

The defined benefit obligation caloulated uscs s disconm mic based on government bonds. 1F bond vields lall. there shall be an merease in ubtiouie cost ol providing the ubove
Bemefit and thus, de defined beneiin obhgavon will iend w increass

Liapuidicy risk:

Thass b5 the risk that the Company = nof able to meet the shar-rcm granuey payvouts. This may anse doe to nonavalsbiliy of coough cash /cash equivalonts w meet the labilines
o ldimz of illiguid assets not bemg sold m ame.

Salary inflativn risk:

Hizher tham expected mereases i salany will increase (he defued benetlst obhgation

Demographic risk:

Thus 15 the nisk of variabality of resuits due 1o nsysiemanc nanee of decremens that include monality. withdrowal. dissbility and retirement.

The Company actively moniters how the doraion and the expected yield of the i estnrents are niatching the expected cash outflows ansing from the cmployee benefin oblagations
Thee Comgamy leae oot aged the processes used 10 manage its risks from provieus perod:

Resgulatory risk:

Gratuky Beneli s patd 1 secordimce with the requirements of the pavmens of graary acr. 1972 (as amended from tme w tme). There 15 nsk of change i epulstions requinmg
higher pratsy pavouts (2.2 increase m the mastmn it on gramiy oF 20 mellion

Reconciliation of the net defined henefit (asset) / liabilin As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 1019
Far value of plan asseis - -
Dehined bersedil obhgation 0.9 185
Defineid henefit liability 3.8 18,5
Reconciliation of present vabue of defined benefin obfisation Year emleid Year ended
31 March 2028 31 March 2i1%
Balance at the beginning of the vea [EX] Ins
Currene service cosi b 32
Tuterest cost 14 0
Bengcfits paid (3 4] iy
Acmurial s 4loss) recogmsed in other comprebensive incor
= expericnce adjusunce: 18 12
- changes w0 fingncial AFELANPION: 3y oy
Balance at the end of the vear 3.9 185

24
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Eenployee Benefits |Conid ) ¥ear ended Year endeil
Expense recopnised in profin or loss
Cuarrent service cost fh 57
Trwerest cost (E] (L]
Past service cosl = =
L) 6.1
R in other P imcoms
Acmaral (samg ¢ foss ansmg donng the vea 56 it
Rizturn on plan assets (greatery | less than discount rk - -
X L1
Defined benefic oblizations
Asat As al
31 March 2020 31 March Xins
Acmarial aseumptions
Duscomnt rate {per ansm bR
Future salary growih rate (per anmin LRI R
Muomaliny me (" of TALM Do-08] TR I (IR L
Artrition e
upto 31 years 3.00% 300
Trom 31« 44 vears 20y 21"
above b vears 00, Lin%s

The discount rae indicmed above eflects the cstimated nmng and corency of benefit pavments. 1t 15 based on yvields! raes available on apphicable bonds a5 on ihe curem
valluation date The salary growth sine as indicated sbove is Compamy’'s best cstimate of an increase in salary of the employess in fisnre years determined considening the gencral
vread i inflaton. semonty . promoticns. past expencnce and other refovan factors sweh as demand and supph i coployment marker i Aanton rate sndicated above represcnts
ihie Congpany's best estimaie of employee tumeyver m fuwre (ober tun on sccounmt of death or vangas factors such as muure of
husingss, retenion policy, indusimy faciors, pasr experience, sc

Awan 31 March 2020, the weishied average duraton of the defined benefic oblization was 27, 19 vears (311 March 2009 29 29 years)

Semsitivity analysis
Remonably possible chamges at the reparmng dane 1o one of the relevan scmanall assampoons, bokding other assmmpirons constant, wold lave affecied ihe defined beneiit
obligaton by the amounis shown beiow

Year caded Year ended
31 March 2020 31 Murch 2008
Inerease o Decrease ti Increase fo Decrease ta
Discount rate (1% movement il L4
Fumre sailary growth mate (1% mosvement 36 21 164
Antrition mie { 30% of attrtion mics) L 182 1ET
Mortality rite | 10% of mortalsly s BT 185 B3

Tlee wbrove sensalivity amalyvses are based on a change in an assumpgion while holding all ether assumplions comstant Tn practice. ihis 15 unlik el that e changs in asswnption 1o
occur i solavon. and changes i some of the assumpuons may be comrelmed When calculating the sensiovaty of the defined benefi obli, o i achural

the same methods (prescon value of defined benefit obligeion and the relaed current service cost and, where applicable, past service cost coloubaled with the projected onit credit
method al the end of the repoming period) fus beest applied as and when calculatng the defined benefit liabiliy recognised in the balance sheet Tt should be noted that valoations do
no affeer the wltimare cost of the plan. onfy finung of when the benefit cost are recogmsed.

Tee methods and tvocs of assumnotions used in oreparing the sensitiviey analvsis did mor change companed 1o the prior perio

Axset Liahility Marching Strategies
e scheme 15 managed on unfosted basy

Effect of plan on Company's futore cash fTows
L3

#) Funding arrangements ani funding Policy
The scheme e managed on unfinded basy

b1 Expected henefit pavments
Undiscounted amount of expezied benelit pay menis for next 10 years are as follow:

Vear eonded Year eoded
31 March 2020 31 March 219
Within | yom e 02
2-5 years T3 62
a1 vears 9k TR
More than 1 vears LE 1) 671

¢} Defined contribartion plams

The Compary mahes L rowards crployess' p cent o and cvployees' stafe plan scheme. Under the schemes, the Compuary 15 regured 1o contmibute
specilficd percentage of panroll cosl as specified i the nules of the scheme. 1o these defined contribution schemes. The Company has recognis@i? ] 4 million (31 March 2019 ¥
201 million b g the vear s expense towards contribastion o these plans

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Providen fud 185 16.5
Emyplovces' sius inswonce scheni IR L
214 pia)

A
e
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33, Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management
4, Fair value measurements

Financial Instruments by Caregory

Thz foilowing table shows the carrving amounts and far values of financial assets and fnancial habilities.

Asat Asal Asay Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 201%
Note No. FVTPL Amortised Cost* FVTPL Amuortised Cost®
Financial asscts
Non-current
; 6 x 4 174
T - 52 25
Curremt
Trade receivables 12 - 447 - (99|
Luans L] - 129 - |#
Cash and cagh equrvalents 13 - 1432 - M4
Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents 4 3496 459
Uhther financial assels 7 2 Gy 3n 1450 16
266 9657 243 A4
Financial limbilities
Non-current
Birrowings. 16A 5 8833 - [
CHlecr farancial habaliies 168, = 334 - -
Cwrrent
Borrowmzs 164 - - - 1525
Trade pavahles 14 = 9415 - TT0
Other financial Fabilities 20 - 3739 - 4255
- 22351 - 30148

*The camving amounts of tride receivables. foans, cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets. wade pavables and other fnancial liabifities are considered to be the same us ther face values
i) Fair value hicrarchy

Financial Assets and liabilities which are measured st Fair Valoe Notes Lavel 1 Level 2 Livel 3 Total
-recurming fair value measurements at 31 March 2020

Financial Assets

Farzign Exchange Forward Contract 7 - 2o - 6.6
- 266 - 266

Asscrs and liabilities which are messwred at amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

for which fair value are disclosed at 31 March 2020 Note No.

Financial Assets

Loans

Secunn deposis s - - L6 164

Loan Lo related party b = = 120 120

Loan to cplowees L - - e IR
- - .3 29.3

Financial Linbilities

Borrowmgs FaA = - L) 2 g2

- 1.091.2 10912

Financial Assets and labilities which are measured at Fair Value Notes Level 1 Level 2 Lovel 3 Total

-recurring fair value measurements at 31 March 2019

Financial Assets

Fotcign Exchange Forward Contract i - 45 = M5
- 245 - 245

Assets wnd limbilitics which are {ar ixedd cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

for which Fair value are disclosed ut 31 March 2019

Finuncial Assets

Louns

Secunny deposits 6 - - 17:4 74

Lnan 1o refaled parts ] - - - -

Loan o employees & - - 15 { e}
5 & 189 189

Finuncial Liabilities

Bormrowings I16A - - LIS 3 L3RS

- 20583 20583

AR
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Financial Instruments - Fair Valoes And Risk Management Contd.

Level 1: Level | hicrarchy snchudes financial msmromenis measwed usimg quoted prices

Level 2: The fair valug of financial instraments thar are nod raded n an acine market 1 determmed osmg valnanon techmgues which maximise the use of observable market daa and rebv as litle as
possible on enuty-specific estmates. 7 all sigmibGeam inputs required 1o Gur value an instrument are observable, the mstrument 15 mcluded m tevel 2

Level 3¢ 18 one or more of the significant mpots is not based o observable market data, the instrument iz meloded m level 3
There are no transfers between Level 1. Level 2 and Level 3 dunng the vear ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019
i} Valuetion technigue wsed to determine fair value

1. Faur value of wade recetvables, cash and cash equivalents. bank balmces other than cash and cash equivalents; current loans. other current financial assets. wrade pavables. other current financial
lizhihtics and borrow megs approxim ate thew camang amount. larscly duc w the short-term nature of these mstruments.

1 Interestriates on bang term borrowangs (inchsding cusrent maturiics ) and other non current financial habilitics are cquivaicnt to the market rate of micrest Accordmghy. the camang value of such
borrawmpes approximaes fur value

3 Far value of fived deposits pledged with vanous govemment asthoriues included in mon=current other financial nssets is egurvalent w thewr carmving amount. as the imterest rate on them 1 squivalent 1o
ket rate

4. Faar vahee of all other soo-current assets have not been disclosed as the change from G mg amount is inconsequential

5 The Far value of Torward forcgn exchange comtracts 15 determmed usmg forward exchange rates 3t the balunce sheer dats
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Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management (Cont.)

h.

fi)

Financial risk management

The Company, as active supphers for the automobile indusiry expose its business and products to various market nsks. credit nsk and hgwidity nsk. The

Company’s management structure with: the mam activines make ¥ org d risk o system  The regulavons, nstuctions,
implementation rules and n particular. the regular communication throughout the ughtly controlled management process consisung of planning,
controlling and memitoring collectively form the nisk management system used to define, record and p . Hi | and strateme nsks

Below notes explain the sources of nsks in which the Company 15 exposed to and how 1t manages the nsks:

Credit risk
Credit risk 15 the nsk of financial Loss 10 the Company 1f a customer or counterparty to a financial mstrument fasls to meet its contractual obhgations, and
arises principally from the Company's receivable from customers. The carrying amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit nisk exposure

Trade receivables

The Company primanly has the exposure from Ongmal Equpment Manufacturer {OEM)

The Company's expected probability of default 15 ml and all major payvments are recerved on due dates wathout any significant delays, hence no loss
allowance has been provided in trade recervables

The Comipany’s exposure to credit risk for trade recervable by the type of customers 1s as follows

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
OEM 4001 699.1
Agemng in respect of trade recervables 15 as follows
31 March 2020
L 3 & i
Tatal £ taan 3-12 months e Carrying
months YEATs amount
Trade recetvables 4601 400 | - - 400 |
400.1 41 - - 400.1
31 March 2019
Total than 3 3 -12 months i Carrying
months years amount
I'rade recervables 6726 672.6 - - 699 |
672.6 672.6 - - 6599.1

Loans a‘nd other financial assets

a) The Company has given secunry deposits to Government depamtments and vendors for secunng services from them  As these are well established
organisations and have strong capacity to meet the obligations, nisk of default is neghgible or mil

b) The Company provides loans to employees for their personal needs and repayment by deduction from the salary of the employees. Loans are given only

to those employees who have served a minimum period as per the approved policy of the Company  The expected probability of default is neglizible or nil
¢} The Company has granted loan 1o one of its related party during the year The Expected probatulity of default s neghwible or mil

The Company's exposure to eredit nisk for loans and other financial assets 15 as follows:

Carrving amount
31 March 2020 31 March 2009
Secunty deposits 16.4 174
Loan 1o employees 0.9 L5
Loan to Related Party . 12.0 -
Bank deposits (due to mature after 12 months from the reporting 352 15
date) :
Imterest acerued on deposits L& 1&
Other receivables 2.0 1.0
68.1 24.0

Cash and cash equivalents
Credit nsk on cash and cash eguivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 15 mited as the Company generalby invests in deposits
wrth iternational and domestic banks with hagh repute

‘?}
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Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management (contd.)
Financial visk management (conrd.)

(ii) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk 1s the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another tinancial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient hiqudity to
meet its liablities. when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Company's
reputation. Long term cash flow requiremient 1s momitored through long term plans. In the hine of long term planming, short term plans are reviewed on

quarterly basis and compared with actual position on monthly basis to assess the performance of the Company and liquidity position.

The Company monitors the level of expected cash milows on trade receivables and loans together with expected cash outflows on trade payables and other
financial habshties. In addinon to this, the Company mamtams the following hne of credt:

- The Company 1s having credit lirmt from banks on account of borrowings, working capital, cash credut ete.. of USD 8.5 mullion and # 3.050 mullon (31
March 2019: USD 8,5 million and ¥ 2,630 mllion).

Exposure to liguidity risk

The following arc the remaming undiscounted contractual maturities of financial habilines including interest at the reporting date:

31 March 2020 Contractual cash flow

Total On demand Feesn thum 3 J-12 months [-5 years More than:s \Carrying

months years amount
Non derivative financial liabilities
Foreign currency loan from bank 407.0 - 753 5Ra 273.2 * 4070
Rupee loan from banks 6R4.2 - 1491 572 607.5 45 6842
Secured buyer's credit from banks - - - - - - -
Employee related payables 182 - 182 - - - 182
Tnterest accrued on borrowmgs 3l - 3l - - - X1
Pavable for property. plant and equpment 180.1 - 146.7 - 354 - 1801
Trade payables 9425 - 228 9197 - - 942.5
2,235.1 = I81.0 1.035.5 914.1 4.5 2,235.0

Forward contracts 438.3 - 69.5 116.5 252.3 - 438.3
31 March 2019 Contractual cash flow

Total On demand Liess i3 3-12 months  1-5 years Morchany (Cartying

maonths years Aamount
Non derivative financial liabilities
Forcign currency loan from bank 415.0 - - 416 3319 41.5 4150
Rupéc loan from banks [.643.3 - 422 1672 1,235.0 198.9 L6433
Secured buyer's credit from banks 152.5 - - 152.5 - - 1525
Employee related payables 148 - 148 - - - 148
Interest accrued on borrowings 0.2 - - 02 - - 0.2
Pavable for property, plant and equipment 213.1 - 1359 281 51.1 - 2131
Trade payables 7209 - 7241 29 - - 727.0
3.,165.8 - 9149 3915 1,618.0 2404 3,165.8

Forward contracts 414.9 - - 41.5 331.9 41.5 414.9

* Contractual cash flows m respect to forward contracts represents the hedmng cost to be paid in subsequent periods These cash flows have been given for
contracts disclosed under financial assers and financial liabilities

%
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Financial Instruments - Fair ¥alues And Risk Management (Cond.)
Financial risk management (contd.)

(i) Market risk

Market nisk 1z the risk thal the fair value of future cashilows of a (nancial instruments will Muctuate because of changes in market price’ rate Market risk comprises three 13 pes of nsk:
interest rale risk. forsign currency 15k and other price nsks. Financial mstrumenis affected by market nsk include loans and borrowings, deposits. and: pavables! receivables in foreign
curencres

Price risk
Fluctuation m commodity price in market affects directly and indirzctly the price of raw matenal and components used by the Company
The kev raw matenal for the Company s s aluminoum The Compamy has arcangements with s major customers for passing on the po

impact

Currency risk

The Company 15 exposad 1o currency nsk to the extent that there is a nusmatch between the currencies in winch purchaszes and borrowings are denominated and functional currency of
the Company, 12 INR (2), The currencies m which these transactions are pnimanly denommated are US dollar. Japanese Yen and Ewro. Thie Company uses forward sxchange
contracts to hedge its currency nsk as per the approved policy of the Company  The Company’s policy is to ensure that its nel exposure 15 kept (o an acceptable level by binving or
selling foreign currencies al spot rate when necessany 1o address short term imbalances. However, the Company has not designated these denvatives as hedge relationship

Deetails of hedged foreign currency exposures:

Particulars As al 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Currency | Amount In | Amount in | Currency | Amount In | Amouni in ¥
Foreign {million) Foreign (million)
Currency Currency
lin million) {in million
Foreign currency loan from bank LsD 34 3314 UsD .0 4149
Trade Pavable LISD .8 39.2 UsD - -
Deetails of unhedged foreign currency expuosures:
Exposure to currency risk
31 March 2020
UsD Py ELUR
Borrowings 154) - -
Trade pavables and other financial liahlities i#4) {00y 10-03)
Less: Forward contract outstmding 02 - -
Net exposure of recognised financial assets/{liabilities) (7.0 {0.0) (1LD3)
31 March 2019
UsD JrY EUR
Bawrowings {60 - =
Trade pavables and other financial habilines (3.8) (247.5) (1303)
Less: Forward contract outstanding L] - -
Net exposure of recognised ial assets/{liabilities) 11.4) (247.5) [URL]
*
nsitiviiy hysi
A b bl | (weakemng) of USD, IPY and EURO aganst TNR (%) at the end of the vear. would have afTected the measm ¢ of financial
dcnomm:ned m a forergn currency and affected equity and profin of loss by the amount shown below, This analvsis assumes that all other vanables, m parbculer inferest rates, remaun
constant
Profit | (Loss) < o nnllron
31 March 2020 pthening Weakening
LISD (1 3% movement) i2.8) 2%
IPY (5% movement) {ininy (Y]
ELIRO (1.3% movemem ) (o y v

31 March 2019

o eErmient | [2.60 26
maoyemeni ) [{{R13] i
movemeant) (o) [1R7]

TS0 LIS Doflar. JPY. Japanese Yen, Evvo: Eure

%
e
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Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management { Cond.)
Financial visk management {contd.)

Imterest rate risk
Irrerest rate risk is the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company s exposure to the|
nsk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily (o the Company ‘s debt obligations with Noating interest ratzs

The Compam ines to manage the nsk pantly by entenng into. fixed-rate instruments and partly v borrowing at a floating mie

Expuosure to Interest rate risk
The Compam has the following exposura in int2r2st bearing borrowings as on reporiing date
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Fixad interest bommowings 407 4k 3OT.5
Vanable interest borrowings fid 2 1.643.3

The Company’s fixed rate borrowings are carmed ot amornsed cost They are. therefore. not subjact (o mierest rate nsk smee nesther the carrvimg amownt nor the future cash Aows will}
Muetuate because of a changs in market interest rates

Vanable interest borrowin gs mclude rupee loan from banks which carmy MCLR based mterest rate.
Sensitivity analysis

A reasonably possible chamge of 124 in interest rate at the reportung date. would have affectad profit or loss by the amounts shown below This analysis assumes that all other variables|
remun constant

Profit / (Loss)

Year ended 1% increase 1% decrease
3¥ March 2020 a9 (0.5
31 March 2% by B
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32, Employee Benefity Asat Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2009

) labilities relating 1o enmployee benefins
Mon-current
Gratuity [EILN ] 1B
Provision for compenzmed absences [LLINE] |14.2)

(410.2) 1324
Current
Gramuty 108) {2y
Provision for compensated absences £7.40) 4y
Total employee henefit habilines (.7 (0.5
Total (47.%) {32.9)

The benefit valued in this report are summarised below ;

of Plan Defined benefic
Emplover's Contnbuson 100%

Employ ee's Contribution 100

Salary for calcalation of gratuic Last drawn salary

(MNormal Reurcment Age Expa emplovees - 3 vears from Dawe of Jomnmng
Other employees 38 Years

Vesung Penod 5 Years

[Benelit on normal reliremient Same as per the provigions of the payvinent of granity
acl 1972 {as ded from wme Lo ame),

Benelin on early retirgment © wwrmination | Same as normal retirement benefit based on the

resignation’ withdrawal service uplo the date of exit

[Benefit on death in service Same as normal retiremaent benefit and no vesong
penod conditrons applies

Lumit 2 million

Crramuiny Formula §3/24 * last drawn salary * mmmber of completed years

1n case of emplovess with age above the reurement age mdicated above, the reurement 1s assumed 10 happen immediately and valwation 1s done accordimgly
b} Defined henefit plan - Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuiny plan, govemed by the Pavment of Gratuify Act 1972 The schieme provides for a lump sum pad ment o vested craploy ces at
reurement. death while n emplovment or on wrminazen of employment Vesing occurs upon completion of five vears of service.

Valuahions are performed on certam basic set of p
the Company o followimg naks:

rminsd P andt other v i ork which may vary over tmne. The above defined berielil plan exposes

Imterest rate risk:
The defined benelic obligaon caleolaled uses a discount rate baszd on government bonds. 16 bond viclds fall, there shall be an mercase m ulumals cost of providmg the above
benefit and thus. the defined benetit obligation will tend 1o increase.

This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the shor-tcrm gratwty payouts: This may arise due 1o non avalability of enough cush ‘cash equivalents 1o meet the habilives
or holding of illiguid asscis not being sold in Gme

Salary inflation risk:
Higher than expecied meremses in salary will increase the defined benefi obligation,
Demographic risk:

This 15 e nsk of vanahiliny of resutis doe w ensysiemans nawre of decrements that melede martahy .

v and
The Company actively monitors how the duration and the expected vield of the invesmnents are matching the expected cash outffows arising from the emploves benetit
obligations. The Compamy has not changed the processes used 1o mannge its nsks from previous perods.

Regulatory risk:
Gratuity benehit is pmd m accordance with the requiscments of the pay ments of grauity act, 1972 (as amended Trom time 1o timer There 15 risk of change in regulations requiring
higher gramin pavous (¢ g increase i the maxmam hmit on gratey of? 20 avilfon

Reconciliation of the net diefined benefic (asset) |/ liability

Asoal Ax at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fair value of plan assets = =

Defined benefit obligaton e 185
Defined benefit fability 9 8.5
Reconciliation of present value of defined benelit obligation Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Balance at the begmuimg of the year 185 s
Current service cost infr 5z
Trikerest cost b4 na
Beencfits paid ih2) 02y
Acmandl gain iloss| recognised m other comprehensywe moome
= experience adjusimenis I'® 1:2
- changes in finuncizal assumpiions 38 [LIEN]
Balance at the end of the vear :22_. 185

e
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Employee Benefirs {Contel.) Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Expense recognised in profit or loss

Current service cost b6
Iracrest cost I+
Past service cost = -
LAl 6.1
gnised in other P ive income
Acimarial (gamy ( loss ansmg donng the ¥ 3k 1
Retum on plan assets (greater)  fess than discount rac = =
b LI
Defined henefit obligations
As at Asat
31 March 2020 31 March 2009
Actuarial assumptions
Discount rate fper anaum | 683 7.75%
Futore salary growth rate (per annum | LR H00
Mefralicy rage (M of TALM (36-08) LELEE N LEUONL
Autrition rate
apio 31 yuars NI ER T4
From 31- 44 vears 2 0 200
above 44 years L Loy

The discount rate indicated above refecis the estimated tming and currency of benefit payments. 1 is based on vields/ rmes available on applicable bonds as om the current
valuation daie The salan growth rate as indicated above is Company's best esurmate of an merease i salary of the emplovess i fnbere vears determined considering the gencral
trend in mflation, senony . promotions, past expericnes and other relevant factors such as demand and supply n employment markee, eie Atmpbon raic mdicaicd above
represents the Compamy 's best cstimptz of cmplovee tarmover in fature (other than on acconnt of et deth or disabl ng varous factors such
as nattre of busincss. retenuon policy, industry factors, past experience. ele

A5 20 31 March 2020, the weighled average duration of the defined benefit obhigavon was 2519 vears (31 March 2009 29 20 vearsy

Sengitiviey analysiv
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting datc o onc of the relevant actuarial assumptions. holding other assumptions constant. would have sffceted the defined benefit
whligation by the amounis shown below

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Increase 1o Decrease tn Increase to Decrease (o
Driscount raie | 1% movement) 6.7 {8 b4
Foture salary growth rate (1% movement) 356 21 104
Atrition tate (3™ of anrition ratcs) 30z 8.2 187
Maortahoe rase | 1% of mortaliy raes) el ] a3 185

The above sensitiviny anaivscs are hased on a change in an assumption while holding all other sssumptions. constant. In practice. this is unlikely that the change i assumplion
occur in isolation, and changes in some of the P may e laed, When cal the sensitrvity of the defined benefit obligation (o significant acruanal
assumptions the same methods (present value of defined benetil obligation and the related current service ostand, where appheable. past service cost caleulated with the
projected unic credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been apphied as and when calculaung the defimed benefil liability xecognised in the balance sheet 1t shoald be
noted that valuatrons do non affeet the aitimaie cost of the plan, only onung of when the benefit cost are recognised
The methods and tpes of assumptions used in preparing the sensityity analy sig did not change comparcd to the prior perod.

13

Ausser Liability Marching Stranegics
The scheme is managed on antunded basis

Effect of plan on Company's futwre cash Mows

) Funding arrangements and funding Policy
The scheme 1z managed on unlunded basis

by Expected benefit pay menes
Undiseoumied amouni of cxpected benefit pavments Tor next 1 vears are as lollows:
Year ended ¥eur ended
31 Muarch 2020 31 March 219

Within | veas [F] 2
-3 years T3 62
fe-Hiyears 5. TE
More than 10 years 480 671

¢} Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contrabutron wwards emplovess’ provident fund and employ zes” siate msurance plan scheme. Under the schemes. the Compay s required w contribate o
specified percentage of payroll cost. as specificd m the rules of the scheme. W these defined contribaion sehemes The Company has recognised ® 21.4 million (21 Mareh 2019
# 201 mithion j dunng the wear as expense Lowards conttibuton (o these plans

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 219
Provident fund 186 165
Employees' state uisurance schieme 18 36
214 0.1

%
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33. Financial Instraments - Fair Values And Risk Managemoent

a. Fair value measuremcnts

Financial Instruments by Category

The fullowing wable show s the carmang amounts and Fair values of financial assets and fimancizl iabihoes

Asoal As at Al As at
v 31 March 2020 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2019
Note Na. FVTIPL Amortised Cost* FVTPL Amortised Cost*
Financial assets
Non-carrent
Loans i - + - 17
Onher financial assets T e 2 - 15
Current
Trade recevables 12 - 447 - 5991
Loans ] - 12y - 1.5
Cash and cash cqurvakents 13 - 143.2 = F0.4
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 EEE R 4649
Oher financial assels 7 26,60 3 2450 2
266 68T 4.5 404
Finunciul labilities
Non-current
Borrowmgs I6hA - B35 - L8098
Cither inamcial Tiabilites 158 - 33 - -
Current
Barmowmgs 154 - - - 1528
Fradc pavables 9 - Q473 - 7274
Oither financial habibitics ki) - 3739 - $25:3
- 2.235.1 - 31148
*The carmving smoums of rade recenvables. loans. cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets. rade pavables and other fmancial babilities are considered o be the same as ther face values.
i} Fair value hicrarchy
Financial Asseis and habilities which are measured at Fair Value Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Toual
-recurring fair value measurements at 31 March 2020
Financiel Assets
Forezn Exchanae Forward Contract v} - b - 2o
- 26.6 - 6.6
Assets amd liabilities which are measured av amortised cost Lavel 1 Level 2 Lavel 3 Total
for which Tuir value are disclosed at 31 March 2020 Nute No.
Financial Asscis
Louans
Securty depasits 6 - - 16.4 (X
Laan ta related party [ - - 120 izo
Loan to cmployees 1] = = by 1]
- - 29.3 293
Financial Liabilitics
Buorrow imgs 16A - - 1.9 2 12
- 10912 10912
Financial Assets and linbilities which ure measured at Fair Value Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
~recurvimg fair valuwe messurements at 31 March 2019
ncial Assets
oreign Exchange Forward Condract 7 - 245 - 25
- 45 - 45
Assets aml liabilitics which are measared ot amortised cost Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tutal
for which fair value are disclosed at 31 March 201%
Financial Assers
Loans
Seeurity deposits & B 174 174
Loan w related par @ - - - %
Loan o emphnvees L] - - i3 {:3
_ - 15.9 189
Financial Lishilites
Bosrowings I6A = 5 2583 20583
= 20583 10583

d
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Financial Instruments - Fair Values Anid Risk Management Contd.

Level 10 Level | hoerarchy ncludes Gnancial mstromesits measured wsing quoted prices,

Level 2: The Tair value of financial mstruments that are not traded in an active market is & aned using yaluati h which 1s¢ the use of obser dble market data and rehy as linke as

possible on cntity-specifi 1 If all sigmfi mputs required to fair value an mstrument are observable. the mstument is mcluded i leved 2

Lovel 3: 1 one or more of the significant mpuis s not based on observable market data. the instrament s meluded o level 3
There ar= no transfers between Level | Level 2 and Level 3 during the vear ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019

it} Valuwati hmi wscil to i ine fair value

| Fair valuz of wade recervables, cash and cash cquivalents, bank halances ndher than cash and cash cqucalents. conrent loans, ather corem financial assetz, wade pavables, other curvent finanzial
liabilinzs and borrpwmes approsin e their carmvmg amoant. fargch duc o the shor-torm nature of thesz instruments

2 inlerest raies on long term bormowings (nclading corrent maturitres ) and other non current fmamcul labilities are cqunalent 1o the market rate of wterest. According by the carrymy value of such
borrowings approxmmaies fmr vahee

i Faw valve of fived deposns pledged with vanons government suthonocs mchided m non-corrent other fmancial asscts 15 equrvalent 1o thenr carrymg amount. as the interest rate on them 15 cquivalent 1o
sarhet rise

4 Farvalue of all mher non-current assets have not been disclosed s the change from camying amount 1s inconseguential.

% The fawr vadoe of forward forergn exchange contracts 15 determmed wsing forward exchange rates o the balonce sheet date
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Finanmcial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management (Contd. )
b. Financial risk management

The Company. as active suppliers for the automobile industry expose 1ts business and products to vanous market fisks, credit nsk and hiquidity nisk. The
Company s management structure with: the main activies make necessary organised nisk management system. The regulations. instructions,
implementation rules and wn particular, the regular communication throughout the tightly controlled management process consisting of planmng,
vontrolling and monitoring collectively form the nsk management system used to detine, record and 1 operating, fi 1al and strategic risks
Below notes explain the sources of risks in which the Company 15 exposed w and how 1 manages the nsks

Credit risk
Credit nsk 15 the nsk of finanwial loss o the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial mstrument fauls to meet its contractual obligatons, and
arises principally from the Company’'s receivable from customers. The carryving amount of financial assets represent the maximum credit nsk exposure

ii

The Company primarity has the exposure from Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM)

The Company's expected probability of default is nil and all major payments are recerved on due dates without any sigmficant delays, hence no loss
allowance has been provided i trade recenvables

The Company's exposure to credit risk for trade recervable by the type of customers is as follows:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
OEM 400.1 6949 1
A geing in respect of rade receivables is as follows
31 Muarch 2020
Total Less than 3 W 1-5 Carrying
months YERIS
Trade recervables 4001 400 1 - - 400.1
400.1 400.1 = - 400.1
31 March 2019
Total Less than 3 - 1-5 Carrying
months Years amount
Trade receivables 672.6 672.6 - - G99 |
672.6 671.6 - - 699.1

*
Loans and other financial assets

a) The Company has given security deposits to Government departments and vendors for secuning services from them, As these are well established
orgamsations and have strong capaeity to meet the obligations, nsk of default 1s neghgible or nil

bk The Company provides loans w employees for thewr personal needs and repayment by deduction from the salary of the employees Loans are grven anly

o those emplovees who have served a minimum penod as per the approved policy of the Company The expected probabihity of default 15 neghwble ar mil
¢} The Company has granted loan to one of its related party dunnu the year. The Expected probability of default 1s neglhgible or nil

The Company's exposure to credit nisk for loans and other tfinancial assets i3 as follows:

Carrying
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Secunty deposits 164 174
Loan to emplovees 09 15
l.oan to Related Party 120 -
Bank deposits (due to mature after | 2 months from the reporting 35a -
dare) - Rl
Interest accrued on deposis I6 (R
Other recervables 20 1.0
68.1 14.0

Cash and cash eguivalents
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits

with internarional and domestic banks with high repute.

%
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Privarte Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al figures are i ¥ Million, except share data and. unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278133

Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management (contd.)
Financial risk management (contd.}

(i) Liquidity risk
Ligquidity risk 15 the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty wn meeting the obliganons associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by
delivermg cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liqudity to
meet its liahilities, when they are duc, under both normal and stressed conditons, withont incurring unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the Company’s
reputabon. Long term cash flow requirement 15 monitored through long term plans. In the lme of long term planming. short term plans are reviewed on

quarterly basis and cornpared with actual position on monthly basis to assess the performance of the Company and liquidity position.

The Company monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade receivables and loans together with expected cash outflows on trade payables and other
financial habilives. In addition to this, the Company maintams the following line of credit:

- The Company s having credit limit from banks on account of borrowings, working capatal, cash credit etc., of USD 8 5 mullion and ¥ 3,050 million (31
March 2019: USD 8.5 million and ¥ 2.630 million)

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining undiscounted contractual maturities of financial habhties including interest at the reporting date:

31 March 2020 Contractual cash flow

Total On demand Ly than 3 3-12 months  1-5 years Minee flums . Cormping

months years amount
Non derivative financial liabilities
Forgign currency loan from bank 4070 - Tob 5806 2732 - 4070
Rupee loan from banks 684.2 - 1491 512 6075 45 6842
Secured buyer's credit from banks = = = = = - -
Employee related payables * 18.2 - 182 - - - 18.2
Interest accrued on borrowimgs il - 31 - - - it
Payable for property. plant and equipment 180.1 - 146.7 - 334 - 1801
Trade payahles 942.5 - 22.8 9197 - - 9425
2.235.1 & 2810 1.035.5 914.1 4.5 2,235.0

Forward contracts 438.3 - 69.5 116.5 2523 - 438.3
31 March 2019 Contractual cash flow

Total On e, AR month Ik years) IS eI Caevying

maonths Years amount
Non derivative financial liabilities
F'orengn? currency loan from bank 4150 - - 416 3319 415 4150
Rupee loan from banks 1,643.3 - 422 1672 1.255.0 198.9 16433
Secured buyer's eredit from banks 15Z5 - - 1525 - - 1525
Employee related payables 148 - 148 - - - 148
Interest accrued on borrowings 02 - - 02 - - ¢2
Payable for property, plant and equipment 213.1 - 133.9 281 511 - 2131
Trade payables 7269 - T24.1 29 - - 727.0
3,165.8 - 2149 3925 1,618.0 240.4 3,165.8

Forward contracts 414.9 - - 41.5 331.9 41.5 414.9

* Contractual cash flows in respect to forward contracts represents the hedging cost to be paid in subsequent periods. These cash flows have been given for
contracts disclosed under financial assets and financial habilities

4




Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
ALl figures are in 2 Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CTN- L2400 30DL.2015PTC 278233

Financial Instruments - Fair Walues And Risk Management (Cond.)
Financial risk management (cantd.)

)} Market risk

Moarket risk is the risk that the fair value of future cashilows of a Gnancral instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market price’ rate. Markat risk comprises three ty pes of nisk:
nterest rate risk. foreten currency sk and other price nisks Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings. deposits and pavables/ recervables m (oreign
currencies

Price risk
Fluctuation mn commoditv prics m markel affects directly and indirectly the pnce of raw matenal and components used by the Company
The key raw matenal for the Company s 15 aluminium The Compam has arrengaments with its mayor customers for passing on the price impact

Currency risk

The Company is exposed to cumency nisk 10 the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which purchases and borrowings are denominated and functional currency of
the Company. 1 2 INR (2) The cumrencies in wihich these transactions are pnmarily denommated are US dollar. Japamese Yen and Ewo The Company uses forward exchange
contracts 0 hedge its currency nisk as per the approved policy of the Company - The Compamy's policy 15 10 ensure thal 115 net exposure is kept to an accepiable level by buymg of
sedling foreign currencies at spoi e when necessary 1o address short term: imbalances. However, the Company has not desipnated these denvatives as hedge relanonship

Details of hedged foreign currency exposures:

Particulars As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Currency | Amount In | Amonnt in | Curvency | Amount In | Amount in 2
Foreign {million) Fareign {million)
Currency Currency
(in milkion) {in millipny
Foreign currency loan from bank UsD 34 3514 USD 6.0 4149
Trade Pavable USD ny 39.2 UsD - -

Details of unhedged foreign currency exposures:

Exposure to currency risk
31 March 2024

UsSD Py EUR
Borrowmgs 34) - -
Trade pavables and other finoncial habilines (8.4) {00y (.03}
Less: Forward contract cutstanding .2 - -
Net exposure of recognised financial assets/{liabilities) (7.01 {410 (1.013)
31 March 2019

UsSD JPY EUR
Borrowings (0] - =
Trade pavables and other financial habilines 138) (247.3) 03y
L.ess: Forward contract outstandin B3 - -
Net exposure of gnised i {iliakilities) {14) 247.3) 0.4

i
Sensitivity analvsis
A by possible i} (weakening) of USD. JPY and EURD against INR (%) @ the end of the vear, would have affected the of fi d
denominated m a foreign currency and affected equiny and profit or loss by the amaum shown befow This analy sis assumes that all other vanables. m particular interest rates. reman
constani
Profit / (Lossy 7 an mllion

31 March 2020 Strengthening  Weakeni
USD {0 5% movement) (28) 2%
IPY (0 5% movemeant) (i 0
ETTRO {10.5% movement) (i o]

31 March 2019

USD {13% movemean} (2.6} 2.6
IPY (0 3% movement) (i 0.0
ETTRO (1 3% mavement) oty 0.0

LISD LIS Dolbicr. JPY: Jupkmesce Yon.
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Minda kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Motes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
(ALl figures are e 2 Million, except share data and unless otherwise stared)
(CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

Financial Instruments - Fair Values And Risk Management (Cond.)
Financial risk management { contd.)

Interest rate risk
Interest rate nisk is the nsk tha the fair value or fuure cash fows of a financial mstrument will Muetuate because of changes in market inlerest rutes. The Company’s exposure o the
risk of changes i market interest rates relates promarily to the Company s debt obliganons with floauny interest rtes

The Company ines lo manage the nsk partly by entenng into fived-rate mstruments and party by borrowing at a Meating rale

Exposure to Interest rate risk
Tha Company has the following exposure i interest beanng barrowings as on reporting date
Asat As at
31 March 2020 31 March Z019

Fixed interest borrowings 470 FhTa
‘VWanable interest borrowings fif4. 2 16433

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carmed af amortised cost They are. theratbre, not subject o mievest rate nsk since newher the carmy mg amouni nor the Mutare cash Tows wall
fluctuate because of a change in market ntersst rates

Variable interest borrowings inelude rupes loan from hanks which camy MULR based nierest rate

sitivity analysis
A reasonably possibie change of 1% in interest rate at the reporting date. would have affected profit or loss by the amounts shown below This analy s1s assumes that afl other vanables
remain constant

Profit ( (Loss)
Year ended 1% increase 1% decrease
31 March 2020 Ha {09y
31 March 2119 1.8 [RRY]
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Motes to the financial statements for the year emded 31 March 2020
(Al figures are in ¥ Milhon. except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN U29130DL2015PTC278233

34. Related Parties
Related party and nature of related party relationship where control exists -

A) Ultdmate Holding Company and Holding company : Minda Industnes Limited. India
Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the vear/previous period -
B) Other enterprise over which Key Management personnel is able to exercise significant influence
| Koser Minda Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

C

Enterprise having significant influence
I Kosei International Trade and Investment Company Limuted

D) Fellow Subsidiary

I Mindarika Pvt Lid

2 Minda Distribution Service Private Limited*
3 M ICasung Lid *

E) Associate companies

Kosei North Aluminum Hokkaido Co Limited
Minda Projects Limited

Kosei Alumimium Thailand Co Limited

Koser Aluminum Co Limited

Minda Nex Gen Tech Pvt Limited

Koser Minda Mould Pvt Lid

Minda Infrstructure LLP

I da b o=

e I

F) Key management personnel

Naveesh Garg (Non executive Director)

Kundan Kumar Tha (Managing Director)

Nirmal Kumar Minda (Non executive Director)

Deepah Chandhoke (Independent- Non Executive Director)

VikramasSingh (Independent- Non Executive Director) upto 12 October 2019
Yoshihiro Toda { Whole time Director)

Shunkichi Kamiya (Non Executive Director)

Krishan Kumar Jalan (Non Executive Director) wet 18 October 2019

~] L e U Y —

==

G) Other related parties
| Pallak Minda ( Relative of director)
2 Pandhi Minda Jindal ( Relauve of director)
3 Suman Minda ( Relative of director)
4 Automotrve Component Manufacturers association of India (Common Directorship) upto 6 September 2019

* Amalgamated with Minda Industries Limited (Holding Company ) vide NCLT approval dated 1 June 2020

Transactions with related parties Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A. Holding company
a) Purchase of raw material, components and parts 0.0 -
h) Employee benefits expense 1.0
¢) Other expenses
ESOP Expenses 1o
Miscellaneous expenses 78 349
Support Services 187 -
Customer Support Fees 77.5 -
Management fees 54.8 R7.0

&
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al figures are in X Million. except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

Related Parties (contd.)

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2019

(d) Reimbursements

{e) Expenses recovered / received 0.8 28
Expense re-imbursed / paid Tl 1.3

(f)y Sale of goods 24 -

(a)

B. Other enterprise over which Key Management personnel is able to exercise

Balamce outstanding as at the year end
Pavables
Receivables / advances

significant influence

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

=
T
o

Year ended
31 March 2020

47.0

Year ended
31 March 2019

(a) Purchase of raw material, components and parts 0.04 -
(h) Other expenses

T'esting expenses 0.8 -
(¢} Reimbursements

Expense re-imbursed / paid 0.00 -

(a)

Balance outstanding as at the year end
Receivables / advances

C. Enterprise having significant influence

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

0.1

Year ended
31 March 2020

0.1

Year ended
31 March 2019

a) Purchaseof raw material, components and parts 1.614.5 1.872.0
b)  Purchase of property, plant and equipment 26.2 437.6
(¢) Reimbursements

Expenses recovered / received 1.4 0.1

Employee benefits recovered / received 1.4 0.5

Expense re-imbursed / paid 0.1 0.1
(d) Issue of share capital -
(e) Employee benefits (net off from expenses) 22
(f) Capital advances 7.6
(g) Other expenses

Testing expenses 1.1 0.2

Legal and professional 2.1 4.

Rovalty expenses 204 243

As at As at

(a)

Balance outstanding as at the vear end
Payables
Receivables / advances

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

466.0

139.8
8.9

%




Minda Kosei Alominum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Al figures are in ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CIN: U29130DL2015PT (278233

Related Parties (contd.)

D. Fellow Subsidiary

4)

b)

c)

(a)

Sale of goods

- Minda Distribution Service Private Limited
Reimbursements

Expenses recovered / received

- Mindarika Pvt. Ltd

Expenses re-imbursed / paid

- M I Casting Ltd.

- Mindarika Pvt. Lid

Other expenses

Legal and professional

- M I Casting Lid.

Balance outstanding as at the yvear end
Payables

M J Casting Ltd.

Receivables / Advances

Minda Distribution Service Private Limited
Mindarika Pvt. Lid

E. Associate companies

a)

b)
c)
d)

e)

g)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
- Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Ltd

- Minda Projects Limited

- Minda Infrastructure LLP
Capital advances

- Minda Projects Limited

l.oans received

Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Lid
Loans given

Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Ltd
Reimbursements

Expenses recovered / received

- Minda Projects Limited

- Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Lid
Expense re-imbursed / paid

- Minda Nex Gen Tech Pvt Limited
- Kosei Aluminum Co Limited

- Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Lid
Other Income

Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Lid

- Rental Income

- Miscelleanous Income

Other expenses

Interest paid

- Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Lid
Miscelleanous Expenses

- Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Ltd
Royalty expense

- Kosei Aluminum Co Limited

- Kosei Aluminium Thailand Co Limited

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

0.06
0.03

0.1

4.6

As at
31 March 2020

0.2

0.03

As at
31 March 2019

(&%

L L b
o = W
f=p I =T SN )

12.0

0.02

0.34
0.12
0.39

—_—
L

%0 ba

0.01
1.8
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the fimancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All figures are in ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U29130DL2015PTC278233

Related Parties (contd.)

(a) Balance outstanding as at the vear end
Payables
Kosei Aluminum Co Limited
Minda Projects Limited
Minda Infrastructure LLP
Kosei Aluminium Thailand Co Limited
Kosei Aluminium Co Limited
Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Limited
Receivables / Advances
Kosei North Aluminum Hokkaido Co Limited
Minda Nex Gen Tech Pvt Limited
Kosei Minda Mould Pvt Limited

F. Other related parties
(a) Other expenses
Rent expenses
- Pallak Minda
- Paridhi Minda Jindal
- Suman Minda
Training Expenses

- Automotive Component Manufacturers association of India

(a) Balance outstanding as at the year end
Payables

Paridhi Minda Jindal

G. Key managemént personnel
Mamnagerial remuneration *

Short term employee benefits
Kundan Kumar Jha
Yoshihiro Toda

Share based payment (including perquisite value as per tax)

Kundan Kumar Jha
Sitting fees

*

Does not include provisions/ contributions

towards gratuity,

compensated absences for all directors. as such provisions/ contributions

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

14.4

As at
31 March 2020

8.8
1153

44

0.3
0.3

As at
31 March 2019

0.8 0.9
1.0 0.9
0.6 03
0.0 -
0.0 -
As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

243 23.6
6.3 5.2
- 26.8
0.2 0.2
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All figures are in ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)

CIN: U29130D1.2015PTC278233

35. Operating Segments
a. Basis for segmentation

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur
expenses. including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's other components. and for which
discrete financial information is available.

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of alloy wheels which constitutes a single business segment, accordingly,
disclosure reguirement of Ind AS 108, “Operating Segments™ are not required to be given. The Company operates within one
geography i.c.. India and all the non-current assets (excluding Deferred tax asset and Income tax asset) lies in India. Therefore,
disclosure for geographical segment is also not required. Results of the Company are reviewed regularly by the Company's Board of
Directors to assess the performance of the Company and to make decisions accordingly.

b. Major customer

Revenue from two customers of the Companv are more than 95% of the CumEanv's total revenue for current and previous vear.
— —— e — — -_— =i —_ —_—
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Minda Kosei Aluminum Wheel Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

{ All figures are in ¥ Million, except share data and unless otherwise stated)
CTN: U291 30DL201SPTC278233

36. The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and decuments as required by the transfer pricing regulation

37.

under Sections 92-92F of the Income-tax Act. 1961, Since. the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous
m nature. the Company continuously updates its documentation to determine whether the transactions enrered into with the associated enterprises
during the financial vear on an arm's length basis. The management 15 of the opimion that such transactions are at arm’s length so that the aforesaid
legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxauon

Share-based compensation
The sharcholders of the Parent Company had approved the UNO Minda Employee Stack Option Scheme — 2019 (herein referved as UNOMINDA
ESOS-2019) through postal ballot resolution dated March 25, 2019

Dunng the vear ended 31 March 2020, the Nominauon and Remuneranon Commities has approved and granted options o Eligible Employees of the
Parent Company and its Subsidiares.

This scheme provided for condinonal grant of stock opuons at nonmnal value to ehgible employees as determined by the Nomunanon and
Remuneration Committee from time to time The vestung conditions under this scheme include the Company achieving the target market capitalisation
The maximum number of equity shares to be allotted under the scheme are 1,012,359 at an exercise price of 325/- each. The sclveme 15 monitored and
supervised by the Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee of the Board of Directors in compliance with the provisions of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Share Based Emplovee Benefits ) Regulanons, 2014 and amendments thercot from ome to nme

The Company accounts for Equity Stock Options of the Parent Company as per the accounting treatment prescribed by the Secunties and Exchange
Roard of India | Share Based Employee Benefits ) Regulations 2014 {as amended from time to time) and the Ind AS - 102 on Share Based Payment.

The terms and conditions related to the grant of the share options are as follows:

Scheme Year Date of Grant | Number of options Vesting Exercise period | Exercise price {T)
aranted conditions per share
Achieving
target  market
) : capitalization i y
M : : T Year from th
bath P e i Optind 2019-20  [16-May-19 85,554 of Rty o oy foanu the 323
Scheme 2019 = date of vesting
Company on or
before 31 May
2022
The number of share options under stock option plan is as follows:
*
Outstanding E geableat
. - xerasabie al >
at the Granted Forfeited/lapsed/ Exercised b ud ol thie Outstanding at the
Scheme Year | beginning of | during the | expired during the | during the coat HE Mrak, end of the vear 31
the year 1 year year year : Z[I".tl March 2019
April 2019 -
Minda Employee Stock | | N .
i 2019-20 - 85,554 - - - 85.554
Option Scheme 2019 £ 1)

Fair valuation
The pareat company has provided the far value of Share based pavment cost that have been done by an independent valuer on the date of grant using
the Binomial Model
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39,

40.

41.
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Minda Kosei Alominum Wheel Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2020
 All figures are in 2 Million, except share data and unless otherwise stared)

The following assumptions were used for calculation of fair value of grants:

Particulars

As at 31 March 2020

Dividend vield

Risk= free interest rate (%) 7.13%

L g s ’ . - 4 years

Expected life of options (vears) [(vear of vesting) +{contractual option term /2]

Cxpected volatility (%) 41%
0.63%

The Risk [ree rate bemng considered for the calculation is the interest rate applicabls for a maturity equal 1o the expected life of the options based on the
zero-coupon yield curve for Government Securities or 10 years Government bonds. Volatility calenlation is a measure of the amount by which a price
has fluctuated or is expected to fluctuate durmg the period  The measure volanlity 1s used in option- pricing model 1s the annualized standard devianon
of the continuously compounded rate of the return of the stock over a penod of time. The dividend vield for the vear1s derived by dividing the dividend
for the period with the current market price

Revenue from Contract with Costomer

I'he table below represents summary of contract assets and liabilities relating 1o contracts with customers -

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Receivables 404.7 699, 1
Contract Liabilities 0.8 -
Disclosure required under Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013
Particulars of Loan Given
2019-20 2018-19
Outstanding | Maximum Amount O ling | Ma A
Name of the Entity Loan Given Loan O ding Loan Given Loan O ding
Kosei Minda Mould Private Limited 12.0 12.0 12.0 - - -

I'he Loan is given only for the working caputal requirement of the Borrower

Coronavirus (COVID-19) Impact on Financial Reporting — Accounting Year Ending March 31, 2020

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of property. plant
and equipment, receivables. inventories and other current assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the
global economic conditions becanse of this pandemuc, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used mternal and
external sources of information including economic forecasts: The Company has performed sensitiy ity analysis on the assumptions used and based on

current estimates expects that the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered

13
The figures have been rounded off o the nearest millions of rupees upto one decimal places The figure 0.0 wherever stated represents value less than

Rs 50,000~
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